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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 
 

BARRICK GOLD CORPORATION,
 
   Petitioner, 
 
vs. 
 
THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 
COURT OF THE STATE OF 
NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE 
COUNTY OF CLARK; AND THE 
HONORABLE ELIZABETH 
GONZALEZ, DISTRICT JUDGE, 
DEPT. XI, 
 
   Respondent, 
 
and 
 
BULLION MONARCH 
MINING, INC., 
 
  Real Party in Interest. 

Case No.  
 
 
 
 
 
APPENDIX IN SUPPORT OF 
PETITIONER BARRICK GOLD 
CORPORATION'S PETITION 
FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION  
 
 
 
VOLUME III OF VI 

 
 
DATED this 22nd day of January, 2021. 

 
     PISANELLI BICE PLLC 
 
 
     By:   /s/ Todd L. Bice     
      James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027 

 Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534 
 Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695 
 Dustun H. Holmes, Esq., Bar No. 12776 
 400 South 7th Street, Suite 300  
 Las Vegas, Nevada   89101 
 
Attorneys for Petitioner Barrick Gold Corporation 
 
 
 
 

Electronically Filed
Jan 25 2021 09:40 a.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Docket 82370   Document 2021-02158



 

   2

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

P
IS

A
N

E
L

L
I 
B

IC
E

  
40

0 
SO

U
T

H
 7

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T
, S

U
IT

E
 3

00
 

L
A

S
 V

E
G

A
S,

 N
E

V
A

D
A

 8
91

01
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

  

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Complaint filed in Bullion Monarch 
Mining, Inc. v. Barrick Goldstrike 
Mines, Inc., et al., Case No. A-18-785913-B, 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

12/12/2018 I PA00001-00041

Minute Order on All Pending Motions 04/22/2019 I PA00042-00044

Barrick Gold Corporation's Motion to 
Dismiss 

10/11/2019 I PA00045-00128

Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc. Motion for 
Leave to File Amended Complaint 

FILED UNDER SEAL 

11/02/2019 I PA00129-00185

Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc.'s Opposition 
to Motion to Dismiss 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

11/12/2019 I, II PA00186-00329

Proof of Service on Defendant Barrick Gold 
Corporation 

11/25/2019 II PA00330-00335

Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Leave 
to File Amended Complaint 

05/21/2020 II PA00336-00338

Order Regarding Motion for Clarification or, 
Alternatively, for Leave to File Amended 
Complaint 

07/14/2020 II PA00339-00343

Second Amended Complaint 

FILED UNDER SEAL 

07/14/2020 II PA00344-00390

Barrick Gold Corporation's Motion to 
Dismiss Plaintiff's Second Amended 
Complaint 

07/28/2020 II PA00391-00414

Appendix to Barrick Gold Corporation's 
Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Second 
Amended Complaint 
 

07/28/2020 III PA00415-00572
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DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE

Appendix to Barrick Nevada Holding LLC's 
Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Second 
Amended Complaint 
EXHIBIT D FILED UNDER SEAL 

08/06/2020 III, IV, 
V 

PA00573-01042

Combined Opposition to Barrick Gold 
Corporation's and Barrick Nevada 
Holding, LLC's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's 
Second Amended Complaint 

08/21/2020 V, VI PA01043-01148

Reply in Support of Barrick Gold 
Corporation's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's 
Second Amended Complaint 

09/08/2020 VI PA01149-01173

Transcript of Proceedings 09/22/2020 VI PA01174-01249

Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Motions 
to Dismiss and Motion for a More Definite 
Statement 

12/09/2020 VI PA01250-01259

 

 

ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

  

DOCUMENT DATE VOL. PAGE 

Appendix to Barrick Gold Corporation's 
Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Second 
Amended Complaint 

07/28/2020 III PA00415-00572

Appendix to Barrick Nevada Holding LLC's 
Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's Second 
Amended Complaint 
EXHIBIT D FILED UNDER SEAL 

08/06/2020 III, IV, 
V 

PA00573-01042

Barrick Gold Corporation's Motion to 
Dismiss 

10/11/2019 I PA00045-00128

Barrick Gold Corporation's Motion to 
Dismiss Plaintiff's Second Amended 
Complaint 

07/28/2020 II PA00391-00414
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Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc. Motion for 
Leave to File Amended Complaint 
FILED UNDER SEAL 
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Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc.'s Opposition 
to Motion to Dismiss 
FILED UNDER SEAL 

11/12/2019 I, II PA00186-00329

Combined Opposition to Barrick Gold 
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Second Amended Complaint 
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FILED UNDER SEAL 

12/12/2018 I PA00001-00041

Minute Order on All Pending Motions 04/22/2019 I PA00042-00044

Notice of Entry of Order Regarding Motions 
to Dismiss and Motion for a More Definite 
Statement 

12/09/2020 VI PA01250-01259

Order Granting Plaintiff's Motion for Leave 
to File Amended Complaint 

05/21/2020 II PA00336-00338

Order Regarding Motion for Clarification or, 
Alternatively, for Leave to File Amended 
Complaint 

07/14/2020 II PA00339-00343

Proof of Service on Defendant Barrick Gold 
Corporation 

11/25/2019 II PA00330-00335

Reply in Support of Barrick Gold 
Corporation's Motion to Dismiss Plaintiff's 
Second Amended Complaint 

09/08/2020 VI PA01149-01173

Second Amended Complaint 

FILED UNDER SEAL 

07/14/2020 II PA00344-00390

Transcript of Proceedings 09/22/2020 VI PA01174-01249

 

 



 

   5

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

P
IS

A
N

E
L

L
I 
B

IC
E

  
40

0 
SO

U
T

H
 7

T
H

 S
T

R
E

E
T
, S

U
IT

E
 3

00
 

L
A

S
 V

E
G

A
S,

 N
E

V
A

D
A

 8
91

01
 

 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of PISANELLI BICE PLLC, and 

that on this 22nd day of January, 2021, I electronically filed and served via 

United States Mail, postage prepaid, a true and correct copy of the above and 

foregoing APPENDIX TO BARRICK GOLD CORPORATION'S PETITION 

FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION properly addressed to the following: 

 

SERVED VIA U.S. MAIL 
 
Clayton P. Brust, Esq. 
ROBISON, SHARP, SULLIVAN & BRUST, P.C. 
71 Washington Street  
Reno, NV 89503 
 
Daniel F. Polsenberg, Esq. 
Joel D. Henriod, Esq. 
Abraham G. Smith, Esq. 
LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERBER CHRISTIE LLP 
3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600 
Las Vegas, NV  89169 
 
The Honorable Elizabeth Gonzalez  
Eighth Judicial District court, Dept. XI 
Regional Justice Center 
200 Lewis Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 
 

 
 
  /s/ Kimberly Peets     

     An employee of PISANELLI BICE PLLC 
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Electronically Filed
7/28/2020 4:24 PM
Steven D. Grierson
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EXHIBIT D 

PA00482

065065



PA00483

066066



IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendant Barrick Gold Corporation's 
Motion to Dismiss (#70) is DENIED as moot. 

Dated this 28th day of July, 2009. 

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE 
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I. SUMMARY

Case 3:09-cv-00612-MMD-WGC   Document 302   Filed 11/01/18   Page 1 of 9
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V. CONCLUSION

Case 3:09-cv-00612-MMD-WGC   Document 302   Filed 11/01/18   Page 8 of 9

PA00493

076076



Case 3:09-cv-00612-MMD-WGC   Document 302   Filed 11/01/18   Page 9 of 9
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EXHIBIT F 

PA00495
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UNITED STATES COURT OF APPEALS

 FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,

Plaintiff-Appellant,

 v.

BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,

Defendant-Appellee.

No. 18-17246

D.C. No. 
3:09-cv-00612-MMD-WGC
District of Nevada, 
Reno

ORDER

Appellant’s motion to dismiss this appeal pursuant to Fed. Rule App. Proc.

42(b) (Dkt. #58) is granted.  Each party is to bear their own attorneys’ fees and

costs on appeal.

FOR THE COURT:

MOLLY C. DWYER
CLERK OF COURT

By: Wendy Lam
Deputy Clerk
Ninth Circuit Rule 27-7

Case: 18-17246, 07/10/2020, ID: 11749525, DktEntry: 60, Page 1 of 1
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1

1              UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
                   DISTRICT OF NEVADA

2

3 BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,

4         Plaintiff,

5    vs.                   Case No. 03:09-CV-612-MMD-WGC

6 BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,

7         Defendant.
______________________________________________________

8

9                      DEPOSITION OF

10                      JOHN MANSANTI

11
                   December 20, 2017

12
                       9:30 a.m.

13
               1600 Broadway, Suite 1600

14                  Denver, Colorado 80202

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22 ATKINSON-BAKER, INC.
COURT REPORTERS

23 (800) 288-3376
www.depo.com

24 FILE NO.:  AB0D628

25                   Karen S. Fogle, RPR

PA00498
081081



2

1                  APPEARANCES OF COUNSEL

2
On Behalf of the Plaintiff:

3
        CLAYTON P. BRUST, ESQ.

4         Robison Simons Sharp Brust
        71 Washington Street

5         Reno, Nevada 89503
        (775) 329-3151

6         cbrust@rssblaw.com

7 On Behalf of the Defendant:

8         MICHAEL P. PETROGEORGE, ESQ.
        Parsons Behle & Latimer

9         201 South Main Street, Suite 1800
        Salt Lake City, Utah 84111

10         (801) 532-1234
        mpetrogeorge@parsonsbehle.com

11
Also Present:

12
        Ms. Jan Steiert

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

PA00499
082082



15

1         A.  Correct.

2         Q.  Was Mr. Feehan a Goldstrike employee?

3             MR. PETROGEORGE:  Objection; foundation.

4         A.  I don't remember the organization.  I think

5 he was -- depending on how Goldstrike was organized, he

6 was my boss.  I reported to him.  I don't remember the

7 organization quite honestly.

8         Q.  Where was he located?

9         A.  He was located in Salt Lake.

10         Q.  Did you report to anybody else in Salt

11 Lake?

12         A.  Not at that time.

13         Q.  What time?  2009?

14         A.  That's correct.  The time I was at

15 Goldstrike.  Prior to that, I reported to Greg Lang.

16 When I came to Goldstrike, I reported to Mike Feehan.

17         Q.  Greg Lang was also in Salt Lake?

18         A.  And Mike Feehan reported to Greg Lang.  For

19 clarification, the joint ventures reported to Greg

20 Lang.  When I was at Turquoise and Cortez, I reported

21 to Greg.  When I went to a Barrick operation -- it was

22 100 percent Barrick, it wasn't a joint venture -- I

23 reported to Mike Feehan.

24         Q.  How did you communicate with Mr. Feehan

25 back then?

PA00500
083083



16

1         A.  Telephone, email, and then once in a while

2 he would come out -- Greg was out every week.  Probably

3 had as much communication with Greg as Mike.

4         Q.  When you were at Goldstrike?

5         A.  Greg is pretty hands-on.

6         Q.  Did you also communicate with Mr. Lang via

7 telephone?

8         A.  Occasionally.

9         Q.  Did you communicate with Mr. Lang via

10 email?

11         A.  Once in a while.

12         Q.  Was the majority of your communication with

13 Mr. Feehan by email or telephone?

14         A.  Probably telephone.  We would have weekly

15 telephone calls with all the operating properties and

16 other calls.  So probably more by telephone than email.

17         Q.  When were those meetings typically held?

18         A.  I think Thursdays.

19         Q.  Who would be on those Thursday meetings?

20         A.  There would be me and then the line manager

21 at Cortez, the mine manager at Turquoise Ridge, and the

22 mine manager at Gold Mountain.  There was a mine

23 manager at Eskay Creek, our Canadian operation.  And

24 I'm probably missing a property in there or two.

25         Q.  So the meetings -- we would have the mine

PA00501
084084
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1 managers on the conference, Mr. Feehan on the

2 conference?

3         A.  Correct.  It was his meeting.

4         Q.  Anybody else from Mr. Feehan's level or

5 above?

6         A.  Dependent upon the issues, but sometimes

7 Greg would sit in, if I remember.  Rarely.  There might

8 be somebody from tech services that would sit in from

9 time to time.  But, generally, it was Mike and his

10 direct reports.

11         Q.  Was there ever anybody from Canada, except

12 for the manager of Eskay Creek, on the calls?

13         A.  From Toronto?

14         Q.  Yes.

15         A.  Not that I remember.

16         Q.  What was typical -- if there was a

17 typical -- of those conferences?

18         A.  It was pretty typical.  Each site would

19 report progress relative to the prior week.  So safety

20 performance, environmental performance, production.

21 And then after we would go through all that, there

22 would be some coordination.  If there were key issues

23 coming up, depending on where you were in the budget

24 cycle or some kind of a safety initiative that involved

25 those sites, that was coordinated at that time.  Key
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1 projects -- sometimes personnel issues, not discipline,

2 but like transfers, things of that nature, were

3 discussed.

4         Q.  Did you ever have to do layoffs or anything

5 like that?

6         A.  Yes.

7         Q.  Is that something that you would first

8 coordinate with your HR -- with Ms. Byington -- and how

9 did that go?

10         A.  Again, that was part of the budget.  We

11 actually laid off part of the workforce at Auto Clave

12 because Cortez Hills was wrapping up at that time.  We

13 coordinated with Cortez Hills.  That plan was put

14 together and reviewed out of Salt Lake City.  Craig

15 Beasley was the director of -- I don't know what his

16 title was, but he was regionally HR out of Salt Lake.

17         Q.  I think I saw a press release about that.

18 Is that where you're trying to save as many Barrick

19 jobs as possible and moving them around?

20         A.  I think we saved two-thirds of the people.

21 There is a group -- seniority that we ended up losing.

22 Some were able to find places at Goldstrike.  The

23 others we found homes for at Cortez Hills.

24         Q.  For something where transfers are

25 occurring, the people in Salt Lake would get involved,
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1 terms of finances and flow of information?  Do you know

2 one way or another?

3         A.  My recollection is the Barrick structure --

4 at that time it was a regional model with multiple

5 regions, North America, South America, Africa, and

6 Australia.  Greg Lang headed up the North America

7 region, which we answered to.  And he was accountable

8 for the regional performance as far as safety, costs,

9 production, environmental compliance.

10         Q.  Do you know one way or another whether

11 anyone in Toronto held a Goldstrike title?

12         A.  I don't know for sure.

13             MR. PETROGEORGE:  That's all I have.

14                       EXAMINATION

15 BY MR. BRUST:

16         Q.  But, ultimately, Toronto called the shots;

17 correct?

18         A.  I mean -- as far as -- define shots.

19         Q.  You talked a couple times about -- that

20 life-of-mine would have to go up to Toronto --

21         A.  No.

22         Q.  Okay.  What about operating issues?  I

23 think you said Greg Lang reported to Toronto for

24 operating issues.

25         A.  I mean, he reported to Peter Kinver, who is
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1 the COO of the company.

2         Q.  In Toronto?

3         A.  Yes.  But Greg -- that was the line of

4 accountability.  Again, it was management by variance.

5 If we were hitting our production targets and our cost

6 targets, I think it was communication coordination.

7 Greg was ultimately -- I answered to Mike who, in turn,

8 answered to Greg for production?

9         Q.  And Greg, in turn, answered to Toronto for

10 the region's production?

11         A.  Yes.

12         Q.  And how did you know that Toronto was even

13 in the picture?  Did they say Toronto wants this to

14 happen or Toronto says this?

15         A.  Very rarely.  For instance, in tires and

16 the Bimbo job we found that not only buying North

17 America's tires but buying Africa's and South America's

18 tires there was a benefit.  So that was a

19 Toronto-driven initiative to look at some corporate

20 synergies around supply chain.

21         Q.  When things could be coordinated from the

22 region, that would be something Toronto would do very

23 similar to how Salt Lake would coordinate for North

24 America?

25         A.  That's right.
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1         Q.  What other types of things do you remember

2 either Mr. Feehan or anybody else saying this is coming

3 from Toronto?

4         A.  I don't remember that happening very much.

5 Capital sometimes -- again, when you have the budget as

6 we rolled up regionally, there would be a corporate

7 roll-up.  There were already kind of bans -- for lack

8 of a better term -- that things would come into.

9 Mr. Feehan spoke for Barrick North America probably 98,

10 99 percent of the time.

11         Q.  You said that when Nigel Bain's -- his

12 duties -- if they had to bring in capital, he would

13 have to get authority.  Can you explain what you mean

14 by that?

15         A.  What I meant by that is if we had a

16 budget -- and this would apply to any of us managing

17 the site -- if there was a significant deviation from

18 the plan that would require capital -- and underground

19 is probably the best example because, if you have to

20 excavate in a different area, that's capitalized

21 work -- in that case, if it was significant, usually we

22 could -- if I knew it was a couple million here or

23 something like that, we could not do something over

24 here and substitute.

25         Q.  You could manage it within Goldstrike?
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1         A.  We could to a point.  But we would have to

2 communicate that to Salt Lake because there was an

3 expectation that whatever you substituted that for that

4 activity was not going to happen.

5         Q.  When you talk about having to bring in

6 capital and get authority for that type of deviation in

7 the budget, when you say bring in capital, do you mean

8 from an outside company?

9         A.  No.

10         Q.  What do you mean by bring in capital?

11         A.  Just having access to more capital spending

12 through the region.

13         Q.  When I say another company, I mean another

14 Barrick company.  If you're going to have to bring in

15 capital, it would come from another Barrick company;

16 correct?

17         A.  That would be a regional decision.  For

18 instance, if -- let's say, Cortez -- as I told you, our

19 budget changed when I first got to Goldstrike.  Part of

20 the reason it did is Cortez needed additional capital

21 dollars, so we gave up capital dollars in that case.

22         Q.  Goldstrike gave up capital dollars to

23 Cortez?

24         A.  Yes.

25         Q.  When one of the Barrick companies had to

PA00507
090090



69

1 move money to another Barrick company, that is

2 something that would have to go through Salt Lake City?

3         A.  Yes.

4         Q.  If it was within Goldstrike, you could do a

5 lot of that yourself?

6         A.  That's correct.

7         Q.  Why would life-of-mine review and support

8 have to go up to Toronto?

9         A.  Because life-of-mine would generally pack

10 reserves.  Reserves were material from a public

11 reporting standpoint.  There is other reasons but

12 that's one of the key ones.

13         Q.  What about on the safety side?  What types

14 of safety things went up to Toronto?

15         A.  If you had a fatality, it was reported.  A

16 critical accident, those would go to Toronto, more

17 informational.

18         Q.  What about planning safety procedures or

19 safety policy?  Was that Toronto also?

20         A.  No.

21             MR. BRUST:  That's all the questions I

22 have.

23             MR. PETROGEORGE:  Just a couple

24 clarifications there.

25
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1                       EXAMINATION

2 BY MR. PETROGEORGE:

3         Q.  When you talked about moving capital within

4 Goldstrike, I think you said even though you had

5 discretion in terms of I will move from one thing over

6 to here, it was a major shift, and you were going to

7 communicate that with Salt Lake; correct?

8         A.  Yes.  And my guess is the shared business

9 center would know that, that would affect forecasting,

10 so those were communicated on multiple fronts.

11         Q.  In terms of the -- sort of the total

12 percentage of your job that was impacted by Salt Lake,

13 can you estimate that for me?

14         A.  All of it.

15             MR. PETROGEORGE:  No further questions.

16             MR. BRUST:  I don't have any other

17 questions.  Thank you.

18             (Deposition concluded at 11:33 a.m.)

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1     A.  Just --

2     Q.   -- BGNA.

3     A.   -- just BGNA?

4     Q.   Yeah.

5     A.   No.

6     Q.   Did you have any other positions with other

7 Barrick entities from -- well, let's just say -- 2009?

8     A.   Yes.

9     Q.   Okay.  What were different entities you had

10 positions with?

11     A.   I -- I would have to have an org chart for me to

12 tell you honestly or the -- the list.  But I was -- I was

13 CFO and -- well, I was CFO on virtually all U.S.

14 entities, legal entities and I was a director on -- I

15 can't say it was all -- at least a majority of them.

16     Q.   Were you a director of Barrick Gold Corp.?

17     A.   No.

18     Q.   Were you an officer of Barrick Gold Corp.?

19     A.   No.

20     Q.   Were you a director of Goldstrike?

21     A.   Yes.

22     Q.   And were you an officer of Goldstrike?

23     A.   Yes.

24     Q.   And were you the CFO of Goldstrike?

25     A.   Yes.

PA00515
098098



10

1     Q.   And were those the -- other than as CFO position

2 with nearly all of the U.S. entities, did you have any

3 other positions with the other U.S. entities?

4     A.   No.

5     Q.   (Nods head.)

6     A.   I don't recall anything that would have been

7 different.

8     Q.   And I think you said your paycheck came from

9 Barrick Gold North America --

10     A.   That's correct.

11     Q.   -- correct?

12              All right.  So you were an employee of

13 Barrick Gold North America, correct?

14     A.   Correct.

15     Q.   And then were you also an employee of

16 Goldstrike?

17     A.   No.

18     Q.   Do you remember -- well, let me back up.  As an

19 employee of Barrick Gold North America, were your duties

20 to help oversee the other U.S. entities?

21     A.   Help me understand what you mean by "oversee."

22     Q.   Well, what were your duties?  Maybe that's an

23 easier way to do it.  You just tell me what your duties

24 were as CFO of BGNA.

25     A.   Okay.  BGNA was a management company which
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1 employed us -- the -- the employees of that entity which

2 was the regional headquarters for the North America

3 region within Barrick.

4              I was part of the leadership team in that

5 entity.

6              And we were given direction to manage the

7 North America business unit which comprised all of the

8 mine sites, closure properties and other legal entities

9 that were within that North America region.

10              And so it -- it essentially functioned as a

11 stand-alone entity.

12              And -- and we had the responsibility for

13 management of all of those properties under that

14 umbrella.

15     Q.   Did BGNA do anything in addition to managing the

16 other entities?

17              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Objection.  Vague.

18     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  Did BGNA --

19     A.   Help me understand.

20     Q.   -- operate mines directly itself?

21     A.   No.

22     Q.   And you said that you were given direction to

23 manage.

24              Who gave the direction to BGNA to manage?

25     A.   Well, there's a global Barrick Gold Corporation.
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1 Barrick global made the decision to run its business as

2 operating companies in various regions.  And so they set

3 up similar offices in other regions.

4              But the -- the -- the mandate to our

5 leadership team was, This is your business.  You need to

6 run this as a business.  You will make the decisions as

7 to how that business is operated, deployment of capital

8 within the business unit, within the region of that

9 business unit; you know, deployment of personnel within

10 that region.  Production.  How that's determined.

11 Creating budgets.  Reporting.  Virtually everything.

12     Q.   So did you have a reporting relationship with

13 Barrick Gold Corp.?

14     A.   No.  My direct reporting relationship was to the

15 president of Barrick Gold North America.

16     Q.   And that was Mr. Lang?

17     A.   That was Greg Lang.

18     Q.   Did you ever communicate with anybody in Toronto

19 from Barrick Gold Corp.?

20     A.   Sure.

21     Q.   What types of things would you communicate with

22 the people in Toronto about?

23     A.   Frequently it was on best practice.  So we did a

24 lot of best practice sharing across the regional units

25 and we would have Toronto people involved in that.
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1              But that was, you know, communication

2 facilitation between my counterparts in the other regions

3 and myself typically with some of that.  So it was to

4 kind of promote consistency, if you will, and that way I

5 would communicate it with the treasury group in Toronto

6 because they had the global mandate for the deployment of

7 capital within the company and so I -- I could obviously

8 see everything within North America and we made decisions

9 based on that.

10              But if there were decisions that had to be

11 made to move capital from one regional business unit to

12 another, then we would have communicated with them on

13 that type of thing.

14     Q.   And so do you know whether -- well, do you know

15 who owned -- or who -- yeah -- in 2009 who owned Barrick

16 Gold North America?

17              MR. PETROGEORGE:  I'm gonna note an objection

18 for the record that I don't believe this is part of the

19 30(b)(6) notice.

20              But go ahead and answer, if you know.

21              THE WITNESS:  I'd have to look at an org

22 chart.  I -- I don't know for sure which entity directly

23 owned Barrick Gold of North America.

24              I don't know if it was directly owned by BGC.

25 There may have been an intermediary in there.
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1              And then the general manager for whichever

2 mine was making a presentation to that committee would be

3 there.

4              We usually had a representative from the

5 safety -- the regional safety director.

6              Who else would have been...

7     Q.   And "...regional safety director" would have

8 been from Barrick Gold North America?

9     A.   Right.

10     Q.   Okay.

11     A.   And -- and we typically had Gordon Merriam who

12 was the contracting and procurement manager because he

13 would have been involved in negotiations and helping put

14 contracts together, as well.

15     Q.   You mentioned that there was Mr. Lang would be

16 involved if it reached his level of approval?

17     A.   Right.

18     Q.   What was his level of approval?

19     A.   Again, I'm not gonna tell you the exact number

20 because I don't remember it off the top of my head.

21              But we had a delegation-to-authority policy

22 in place that spelled that out for -- so if it was an

23 operating expense, it was the entire budget for the North

24 America region.

25     Q.   Um-hum.
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1     A.   And so whatever the budget we had put into place

2 that had been approved for the year by the -- the team

3 and then was in line with the global allocation, he had

4 full -- full approval for that budget.

5              On capital spend there was a ceiling and I

6 don't remember the number.

7     Q.   Who was on the team that did the approval of the

8 budget?

9     A.   Same team.  It was all of the senior leaders in

10 the -- at Barrick Gold of North America.  So it was --

11 it -- it -- I -- I'd call it Greg Lang and his senior

12 leadership team.

13     Q.   Was anybody from Toronto involved in setting the

14 budget for Barrick Gold North America?

15     A.   No.

16              Toronto's role, again, and that was in -- in

17 global allegation of capital.  So they may come back --

18 and did quite often come back to us and say, "We could

19 use this much more production globally to meet our global

20 targets; can you do it?"

21              And we could then go back and review and see

22 if we could offer that up.

23              But they didn't participate in the budget

24 setting and -- and -- and in that process.  That was

25 something that we presented to them.
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1     Q.   And when you presented it to them, what was the

2 purpose of presenting it to them?

3     A.   Again, for them to be able to allocate globally

4 where -- whatever resources may be -- may have been

5 needed.

6     Q.   Was there ever a time where you did not present

7 a budget to Barrick Gold Corp.?

8     A.   No, not for a final budget.

9     Q.   Was it -- were you supposed to present them --

10              (Simultaneous colloquy.)

11     A.   Well, they have --

12     Q.   -- yearly?

13              THE REPORTER:  Wait.

14              THE WITNESS:  -- they have it consolidated.

15 So as -- as the public company, they had to consolidate

16 that for reporting purposes, et cetera, to the public

17 market.

18              So -- so, no, we had to report it from that

19 standpoint so that they could consolidate.

20     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  And, other than occasionally

21 asking whether Barrick Gold North America and the

22 companies that it oversaw could produce more gold or more

23 profit, was there ever any other changes that they

24 suggested or made to the budget?

25     A.   Just similar things to that where it was
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1 discussions were with counsel?

2     A.   Correct.

3              MR. BRUST:  All right.  Thanks.

4                        EXAMINATION

5 BY MR. PETROGEORGE:

6     Q.   Mr. Measom, how were the resources for Barrick

7 Gold of North America, including the Salt Lake City

8 office and the Shared Business Center, allocated among

9 the various entities that you were in charge with

10 managing and overseeing?

11     A.   So we did an allocation of the costs for those

12 various departments for Barrick Gold of North America

13 and -- and it was a couple of different things.

14              We -- for example, Human Resources and I.T.

15 tended to be driven by head counts, and so we would

16 allocate based on the head counts at the given mine

17 sites.

18              Other departments -- technical, safety, some

19 of those kinds of things -- were driven more by just a --

20 the production levels or the size of the business for

21 each of the mine sites, so we would do that based on the

22 production levels.

23     Q.   So while the BA- -- while BGNA as the entity

24 employed those folks that were in Salt Lake and the SBC,

25 the costs of those employees were shared and allocated to
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1 the various entities that you were managing and

2 overseeing.

3     A.   For the most part, yes.

4     Q.   Okay.

5     A.   There were a few departments that we didn't

6 allocate because they just really didn't specifically do

7 work at the mine sites.

8     Q.   Where did you, as the CFO of Goldstrike,

9 considered -- consider BGMI's corporate headquarters to

10 be in 2009?

11     A.   Salt Lake for sure.

12     Q.   And was all of the payroll for Barrick

13 Goldstrike Mines, Inc. processed in the Salt Lake City

14 office?

15     A.   Yes, it was.

16     Q.   Once Barrick Goldstrike of North America -- or,

17 I'm sorry -- Barrick Gold of North America created a

18 budget for the region, would Toronto ever come in and

19 overrule that budget?

20     A.   No.

21              As I said, they may come down and -- and ask

22 for more production for, you know, help in balancing a

23 cost profile or something like that.

24              But we had the discretion within our

25 portfolio of entities in North America to get that
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1 production or those changes from whichever one we felt

2 like it made the most sense as the management team to do

3 that.

4     Q.   Did Toronto have any involvement whatsoever in

5 establishing the budget for Barrick Goldstrike Mines,

6 Inc.?

7     A.   No.

8     Q.   Did Barrick Gold of North America have any

9 involvement in establishing the budget for Barrick

10 Goldstrike Mines, Inc.?

11     A.   Yes, absolutely.

12     Q.   What involvement?

13     A.   Again, oversight.  We -- we worked with them

14 directly.  We would work with them on setting the

15 targets, in giving them an idea of what our goal -- our

16 regional targets were.

17              And, you know, we had history to work with,

18 so we knew where they had been and kind of how their

19 operations were going and what they might be able to do.

20 So we would work with them on targets for that.

21              Asked them to then go and put their best foot

22 forward.  And then we would again bring the region

23 together and look at where we -- where we consolidated,

24 where we rolled up as a region.  And then we may go back

25 and do that, you know, iterations of that until we got
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1 the -- the budget that we felt like was our best foot

2 forward in terms of what we wanted to accomplish as a

3 region.

4     Q.   In terms of involvement and control over setting

5 budget for Goldstrike, was BGNA's involvement in that

6 more significant than whatever role Toronto had in

7 setting BGNA's budget?

8     A.   Much more.

9              MR. PETROGEORGE:  No further questions.

10              MR. BRUST:  Okay.

11                        EXAMINATION

12 BY MR. BRUST:

13     Q.   You talked about the cost allocations.  And let

14 me make sure I understand what you were saying.

15     A.   Okay.

16     Q.   You're saying that if -- that -- that part of

17 the budgets of the companies in Nevada took into account

18 the cost of operating BGNA; is that correct?

19     A.   Yes, I believe so.  It was -- it was an

20 allocation of the BGNA costs.

21              So essentially, because we had responsibility

22 for operating those entities, those mine sites, it was an

23 allocation of those costs to those mine sites.

24     Q.   So, for example, Cortez --

25     A.   (Nods head.)
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1     Q.   -- in its budget would have an alloca- -- an

2 expense that would pay for some of the salaries at BGNA.

3     A.   Salaries and other things, yes.

4     Q.   Okay.  Okay.

5              And then you said there were some things that

6 were not allocated.  What -- what things were not

7 allocated to the companies in Nevada?

8     A.   The only one I can think of right off the top of

9 my head was we had a portion of legal costs where --

10     Q.   Um-hum.

11     A.   -- it was specific to a given case or a given

12 issue that was being addressed and we didn't allocate

13 those because it was -- we -- we costed those directly to

14 that, wherever that entity, whatever entity had that

15 particular issue.

16     Q.   I see.

17              So then all of BGNA's funding came from the

18 companies that it was managing; is that correct?

19     A.   Well, yeah.

20              I mean BGNA didn't have a revenue source.  So

21 you couldn't -- you couldn't just say, "Yeah, yeah, the

22 money pays the bills within BGNA."

23              But it was the management company, the

24 operating entity for all of those mines.

25     Q.   Did any of BGNA's funds that allowed it to
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1 operate come from Toronto?

2     A.   No.

3              MR. BRUST:  Okay.

4              That's all --

5              MR. PETROGEORGE:  One --

6              MR. BRUST:  -- I have.

7              MR. PETROGEORGE:  -- one follow-up, just so

8 I'm clear.

9                        EXAMINATION

10 BY MR. PETROGEORGE:

11     Q.   Mr. Brust asked you about Cortez in -- as part

12 of those questions.

13              Where was the corporate headquarters of

14 Cortez in '09?

15     A.   Salt Lake.

16              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Okay.  No further

17 questions.

18              MR. BRUST:  Thank you.

19              THE WITNESS:  Sure.

20              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Okay.

21              (Brief discussion off the record.)

22              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Yeah.  We'll read and sign.

23              If you can send it to me, I'll coordinate

24 with Mr. Measom to get that done.

25              (At the request of Mr. Brust and
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1 Mr. Petrogeorge during an off-the-record discussion,

2 the following proceedings were copied into the record

3 from the deposition of Tony Astorga held on March 20,

4 2018, starting at page 127, line 19 through page 128,

5 line 5, and apply to this deposition also:

6                  "MR. PETROGEORGE:  Back on the

7              record on the Astorga deposition.

8                      "All of the exhibits that

9              were marked in that deposition are

10              de-designated.  None of that is

11              confidential.

12                      "I'm reserving the right

13              with respect to some of the

14              incomplete documents that I can't

15              say for sure whether the entire

16              document needs to be marked

17              'Confidential,' but the version

18              of the exhibit is not.

19                  "THE REPORTER:  And the

20              transcript is not.

21                  "MR. PETROGEORGE:  Correct.

22                  "MR. BRUST:  Yes.")

23                  (At 1:14 p.m. the deposition

24              was concluded.)

25
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1                     WITNESS SIGNATURE

2 STATE OF ________________________)
                                 )

3 COUNTY OF _______________________)

4

5

6

7

8              I, the undersigned, declare under penalty of

9 perjury:

10              That I have read the foregoing transcript;

11              That I have made any corrections, additions

12 or deletions that I was desirous of making;

13              That the foregoing is a true and correct

14 transcript of my testimony contained therein.

15              EXECUTED this _______ day of _______________,

16 20___,  at _________________________, _______________.
             (City)                     (State)

17

18

19

20

21              ___________________________________

22              BLAKE MEASOM

23

24

25
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1                UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

2                     DISTRICT OF NEVADA

3 BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,      )
                                   )

4              Plaintiff,            )
                                   )

5      v.                            ) Case No.
                                   ) 03:09-CV-612-MMD-WGC

6 BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,    )
                                   )

7              Defendant,            )
                                   )

8 ___________________________________)

9

10                   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

11              I, Deby Couvillon Green, Certified Shorthand

12 Reporter for the State of Texas CSR No. 8929 and for the

13 State of California CSR No. 2791, and for the State of

14 Utah CSR No. 10611481-7801, Registered Professional

15 Reporter and Registered Merit Reporter, do hereby

16 certify:

17              That the foregoing proceedings were taken

18 before me at the time and place therein set forth, at

19 which time the witness was put under oath by me;

20              That the testimony of the witness, the

21 questions propounded, and all objections and statements

22 made at the time of the examination were recorded

23 stenographically by me and were thereafter transcribed;

24              That a review of the transcript by the

25 deponent was requested;
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1              That the foregoing is a true and correct

2 transcript of my shorthand notes so taken.

3              I further certify I am not a relative or

4 employee of any attorney of the parties, nor financially

5 interested in the action.

6              I declare under penalty of perjury under the

7 laws of Texas that the foregoing is true and correct.

8              Dated this 28th day of March, 2018.

9

10          ____________________________________________

11          DEBY COUVILLON GREEN, Texas CSR No. 8929
         Expiration Date:  12-31-2019

12          California CSR No. 2791
         Expiration Date:  8-31-2018

13          Utah CSR No. 10611481-7801
         Expiration Date:  5-31-2020

14          Atkinson-Baker Court Reporters, Inc.
         Firm Registration No. 32

15          Expiration Date:  12-31-2019
         500 North Brand Boulevard

16          Glendale, California  91203
         (818) 551-7300

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 FILE NO.:  AC02625
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·1· · · · · · · · · UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

·2· · · · · · · · · · · ·DISTRICT OF NEVADA

·3· ·BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,· · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·4· · · · · · · · Plaintiff,· · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·5· · · · v.· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ) Case No.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ) 03:09-CV-612-MMD-WGC
·6· ·BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,· · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·7· · · · · · · · Defendant,· · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·8· ·___________________________________)

·9
· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·DEPOSITION OF
10
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · TONY ASTORGA
11
· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·MARCH 20, 2018
12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
· · ·ATKINSON-BAKER, INC.
21· ·COURT REPORTERS
· · ·(800) 288-3376
22· ·www.depos.com

23· ·REPORTED BY:· DEBY COUVILLON GREEN,CA CSR NO. 2791
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · TX CSR NO. 8929
24· · · · · · · · · · · · · ·UTAH CSR NO. 10611481-7801

25· ·FILE NO.:· AC02624
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·1· · · · · · · · · UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

·2· · · · · · · · · · · ·DISTRICT OF NEVADA

·3· ·BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,· · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·4· · · · · · · · Plaintiff,· · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·5· · · · v.· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ) Case No.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ) 03:09-CV-612-MMD-WGC
·6· ·BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,· · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·7· · · · · · · · Defendant,· · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·8· ·___________________________________)

·9· · · · · · · · Oral deposition of TONY ASTORGA, taken on

10· ·behalf of the Plaintiff Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc.,

11· ·and duly sworn, was taken in the above-styled case on

12· ·March 20, 2018 from 8:55 A.M. to 12:36 P.M. before Deby

13· ·Couvillon Green, CSR in and for the State of Texas and in

14· ·and for the State of California, and in and for the State

15· ·of Utah, Registered Professional Reporter, reported by

16· ·machine shorthand, at Parsons Behle & Latimer,

17· ·201 South Main Street, Suite 1800, Salt Lake City,

18· ·Utah, 84111 pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil

19· ·Procedure and the provisions stated in the record

20· ·or attached hereto.

21

22

23

24

25
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·1· · · · · · · · · · ·A P P E A R A N C E S

·2· ·FOR THE PLAINTIFF:

·3· · · · LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERGER LLP
· · · · · (No appearance at the deposition.)
·4· · · · 3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600
· · · · · Las Vegas, Nevada· 89169-5996
·5· · · · (702) 949-8200

·6· · · · · · · · --- and ---

·7· · · · ROBISON, SHARP, SULLIVAN & BRUST
· · · · · BY:· CLAYTON P. BRUST
·8· · · · 71 Washington Street
· · · · · Reno, Nevada· 89503
·9· · · · (775) 329-3151
· · · · · email:· cbrust@rssblaw.com
10

11· ·FOR THE DEFENDANT:

12· · · · PARSONS BEHLE & LATIMER
· · · · · BY:· MICHAEL P. PETROGEORGE
13· · · · 201 South Main Street, Suite 1800
· · · · · Salt Lake City, Utah· 84111
14· · · · (801) 532-1234
· · · · · e-mail mpetrogeorge@parsonsbehle.com
15

16· ·ALSO PRESENT:

17· · · · · · PETER WEBSTER, General Counsel U.S.
· · · · · · · · · Barrick
18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

YVer1f
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·1· ·Mr. Haddock about contract issues?

·2· · · · · · · · MR. PETROGEORGE:· Without revealing any

·3· ·substance --

·4· · · · · · · · MR. BRUST:· Right.

·5· · · · · · · · MR.· PETROGEORGE:· -- you can answer that

·6· ·question.

·7· · · · · · · · THE WITNESS:· On occasion.

·8· · · · · · · · But the majority of the communication was

·9· ·in -- with Mr. Grandy.

10· · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. BRUST:)· Were there any Barrick lawyers

11· ·that you spoke with in Nevada?

12· · · · · · · · MR. PETROGEORGE:· Objection.· Vague with

13· ·respect to whether you're referring to inside or outside

14· ·counsel.

15· · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. BRUST:)· Either.

16· · · ·A.· ·So my communication with lawyers as -- as part

17· ·of Barrick Gold of -- of North America was in -- the only

18· ·lawyers that I recall discussing matters with were

19· ·based -- individuals that were based in Salt Lake City.

20· · · ·Q.· ·And do you recall any conversations with lawyers

21· ·based in Salt Lake City who did not work for Barrick Gold

22· ·North America?

23· · · · · · · · And what I mean by that is something that

24· ·your counsel just mentioned which is there are lawyers

25· ·like Mr. Petrogeorge who don't work directly for Barrick

YVer1f
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·1· ·Gold North America or Barrick Goldstrike, they work for a

·2· ·law firm that's been hired by the business.

·3· · · · · · · · And then there are lawyers like Mr. Haddock

·4· ·who actually work directly for the company.

·5· · · · · · · · And so what I'm asking is did you ever have

·6· ·conversations with any lawyers that were what we call

·7· ·outside counsel?

·8· · · ·A.· ·Not that I can recall.

·9· · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· Did you ever have to communicate with

10· ·anybody in Toronto regarding contracts?

11· · · · · · · · (Brief pause.)

12· · · ·A.· ·I don't recall during the period having to talk

13· ·with individuals from the Toronto office in regards to

14· ·specific contracts.· I don't recall at this time.

15· · · ·Q.· ·Did you ever receive any guidance or policies

16· ·from Toronto while you worked for Barrick Gold North

17· ·America?

18· · · ·A.· ·There were Barrick Gold Corporation policies

19· ·that were then distributed through the regions.· And the

20· ·policies for Barrick Gold of North America.· I was

21· ·working underneath the direction of Barrick Gold of North

22· ·America's policies.

23· · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· So were you also working under the

24· ·directions of Barrick Gold's policies?

25· · · ·A.· ·Barrick Gold Corporation's policies would then

YVer1f
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·1· ·be applied to the -- the various regions.· So in that

·2· ·respect, I would say, "Yes."

·3· · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· Do you remember which policies came from

·4· ·Barrick Gold?

·5· · · ·A.· ·Barrick Gold Corporation had five main supply

·6· ·chain policies that were the direction when I started

·7· ·in -- in the beginning of 2009.

·8· · · ·Q.· ·Do you remember what those were?

·9· · · ·A.· ·Those were policies related to sourcing process

10· ·and procurement and contracts policies.· However, the --

11· ·because they were Barrick Gold Corporation policies, the

12· ·application of those policies may differ depending upon

13· ·the region which they would support.

14· · · · · · · · So the legal law and requirements of entities

15· ·located in the United States may differ from locations

16· ·in, say, Chile or Peru or Africa or those various

17· ·different entities.

18· · · ·Q.· ·How did you receive the policies from Barrick

19· ·Gold Corp.?

20· · · ·A.· ·Through Barrick Gold of North America.

21· · · ·Q.· ·Would they come through emails or would you go

22· ·to meetings?

23· · · ·A.· ·The Corp. -- the policies were distributed to me

24· ·and made available to -- to me through websites.

25· · · ·Q.· ·So then was part of your job to follow those

YVer1f
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·1· ·policies?

·2· · · ·A.· ·Yes.

·3· · · ·Q.· ·Okay.· Did you work for Barrick Gold Corp.?

·4· · · ·A.· ·I worked for Barrick Gold of North America.

·5· · · · · · · · MR. BRUST:· Okay.· All right, Counsel.

·6· · · · · · · · I don't know if there are any documents that

·7· ·you produced that were not marked "Confidential."· ·So,

·8· ·as we go into these, do you want to -- I'm assuming you

·9· ·want to designate -- do you want to designate the

10· ·transcript "Confidential" or what do you want to do?

11· · · · · · · · MR. PETROGEORGE:· Let's take them one at a

12· ·time.

13· · · · · · · · MR. BRUST:· Okay.

14· · · · · · · · MR. PETROGEORGE:· And I'll -- I can confer

15· ·with Peter on that.

16· · · · · · · · MR. BRUST:· Okay.· Okay.

17· · · · · · · · I'm handing you what's been marked Exhibit

18· ·Number 1.

19· · · · · · · · · · (Whereupon Exhibit 1 was marked

20· · · · · · · · for identification.)

21· · · ·Q.· ·(BY MR. BRUST:)· So Exhibit Number 1, is that an

22· ·email from you?

23· · · ·A.· ·Yes.· It's an e-mail dated April 14, 2009.

24· · · ·Q.· ·And it says behind your name "(Nevada SBC)".· Is

25· ·that the "SBC" is the Shared Business Center we've been

YVer1f
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·1· · · · · · · · · UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

·2· · · · · · · · · · · ·DISTRICT OF NEVADA

·3· ·BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,· · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·4· · · · · · · · Plaintiff,· · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·5· · · · v.· · · · · · · · · · · · · · ) Case No.
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ) 03:09-CV-612-MMD-WGC
·6· ·BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,· · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·7· · · · · · · · Defendant,· · · · · · )
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · )
·8· ·___________________________________)

·9

10· · · · · · · · · · ·REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

11· · · · · · · · I, Deby Couvillon Green, Certified Shorthand

12· ·Reporter for the State of Texas CSR No. 8929 and for the

13· ·State of California CSR No. 2791, and for the State of

14· ·Utah CSR No. 10611481-7801, Registered Professional

15· ·Reporter and Registered Merit Reporter, do hereby

16· ·certify:

17· · · · · · · · That the foregoing proceedings were taken

18· ·before me at the time and place therein set forth, at

19· ·which time the witness was put under oath by me;

20· · · · · · · · That the testimony of the witness, the

21· ·questions propounded, and all objections and statements

22· ·made at the time of the examination were recorded

23· ·stenographically by me and were thereafter transcribed;

24· · · · · · · · That a review of the transcript by the

25· ·deponent was requested;
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1              That the foregoing is a true and correct

2 transcript of my shorthand notes so taken.

3              I further certify I am not a relative or

4 employee of any attorney of the parties, nor financially

5 interested in the action.

6              I declare under penalty of perjury under the

7 laws of Texas that the foregoing is true and correct.

8              Dated this 28th day of March, 2018.

9

10          ____________________________________________

11          DEBY COUVILLON GREEN, Texas CSR No. 8929
         Expiration Date:  12-31-2019

12          California CSR No. 2791
         Expiration Date:  8-31-2018

13          Utah CSR No. 10611481-7801
         Expiration Date:  5-31-2020

14          Atkinson-Baker Court Reporters, Inc.
         Firm Registration No. 32

15          Expiration Date:  12-31-2019
         500 North Brand Boulevard

16          Glendale, California  91203
         (818) 551-7300

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 FILE NO.:  AC02624
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1

1                UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

2                     DISTRICT OF NEVADA

3 BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,      )
                                   )

4              Plaintiff,            )
                                   )

5      v.                            ) Case No.
                                   ) 03:09-CV-612-MMD-WGC

6 BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,    )
                                   )

7              Defendant,            )
                                   )

8 ___________________________________)

9
                      DEPOSITION OF

10
                       ANDY BOLLAND

11
                      MARCH 21, 2018

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20
ATKINSON-BAKER, INC.

21 COURT REPORTERS
(800) 288-3376

22 www.depos.com

23 REPORTED BY:  DEBY COUVILLON GREEN,CA CSR NO. 2791
                                   TX CSR NO. 8929

24                         UTAH CSR NO. 10611481-7801

25 FILE NO.:  AC02625
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2

1                UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

2                     DISTRICT OF NEVADA

3 BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,      )
                                   )

4              Plaintiff,            )
                                   )

5      v.                            ) Case No.
                                   ) 03:09-CV-612-MMD-WGC

6 BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,    )
                                   )

7              Defendant,            )
                                   )

8 ___________________________________)

9              Oral deposition of ANDY BOLLAND, taken on

10 behalf of the Plaintiff Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc.,

11 and duly sworn, was taken in the above-styled case on

12 March 21, 2018 from 8:57 A.M. to 10:31 A.M. before Deby

13 Couvillon Green, CSR in and for the State of Texas and in

14 and for the State of California, and in and for the State

15 of Utah, Registered Professional Reporter, reported by

16 machine shorthand, at Parsons Behle & Latimer,

17 201 South Main Street, Suite 1800, Salt Lake City,

18 Utah, 84111 pursuant to the Federal Rules of Civil

19 Procedure and the provisions stated in the record

20 or attached hereto.

21

22

23

24

25

PA00545
128128



3

1                   A P P E A R A N C E S

2 FOR THE PLAINTIFF:

3      LEWIS ROCA ROTHGERGER LLP
     (No appearance at the deposition.)

4      3993 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 600
     Las Vegas, Nevada  89169-5996

5      (702) 949-8200

6              --- and ---

7      ROBISON, SHARP, SULLIVAN & BRUST
     BY:  CLAYTON P. BRUST

8      71 Washington Street
     Reno, Nevada  89503

9      (775) 329-3151
     email:  cbrust@rssblaw.com

10

11 FOR THE DEFENDANT:

12      PARSONS BEHLE & LATIMER
     BY:  MICHAEL P. PETROGEORGE

13      201 South Main Street, Suite 1800
     Salt Lake City, Utah  84111

14      (801) 532-1234
     e-mail mpetrogeorge@parsonsbehle.com

15

16 ALSO PRESENT:

17          PETER WEBSTER, General Counsel U.S.
             Barrick

18
         JAN N. STEIERT, Chief Legal Officer

19              EMX Royalty Corp.

20

21

22

23

24

25
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1     Q.   And, of course, Goldstrike is in there.

2     A.   Turquoise Ridge.

3              THE REPORTER:  Sorry?

4              THE WITNESS:  Turquoise Ridge.

5     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  Do you know who owns Barrick

6 Gold North America?

7              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Now or in 2009?

8     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  In 2009.

9     A.   I would be guessing, but I'm saying Barrick Gold

10 Corporation.

11     Q.   Okay.  And Barrick Gold Corporation is

12 headquartered in Toronto; is that right?

13     A.   That's correct.

14     Q.   And who owns Goldstrike?  Who owned Goldstrike

15 in 2009?

16              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Are you referring to the

17 mine site?

18              MR. BRUST:  I'm referring to the company.

19              THE WITNESS:  It was a Barrick Gold operation

20 that reported up through the -- the Barrick Gold North

21 America business unit.

22     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  Do you know who -- which entity

23 owned the actual company?

24     A.   No.

25     Q.   What is the -- or in 2009, what was the business

PA00547
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1 of Barrick Goldstrike?

2     A.   The business of Barrick Goldstrike was to safely

3 produce gold.

4     Q.   From?

5     A.   From the deposit at the -- at -- you know --

6     Q.   Out in Carlin?

7     A.   Out in Car- -- well, yeah, in that area.

8     Q.   Okay.  And what was the business of Barrick Gold

9 North America in 2009?

10              MR. PETROGEORGE:  I'm just gonna object.  I

11 think this goes beyond the scope of what he's been

12 designated to testify to.

13              I'm going to give you a little leeway.

14              MR. BRUST:  Okay.

15              MR. PETROGEORGE:  But I'm not going to let

16 you go very far.

17              MR. BRUST:  Okay.

18              THE WITNESS:  Could you repeat the question?

19     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  Yes.

20              What was the business of Barrick Gold North

21 America in 2009?

22     A.   The business of Barrick Gold North America, as I

23 saw it, was to manage the eight or nine mines that

24 reported up through the Salt Lake City office.

25     Q.   And when you say "...up through...", it was up

PA00548
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1 through the Salt Lake office up to Barrick Gold in

2 Toronto, correct?

3     A.   No.  It was basically to the Barrick Gold of

4 North America office to Greg Lang who was the -- the

5 president.

6              Greg Lang reported to Peter Kinver.

7              THE REPORTER:  "Peter" --

8              THE WITNESS:  Kinver, I think, back then.

9     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  And when you went to work for

10 Barrick Gold North America, I think you said were you

11 required to move to Salt Lake?

12     A.   I did.

13     Q.   Okay.  Did you ever work out of the Shared

14 Business Center -- I think is what they call it -- in

15 Elko?

16     A.   I never worked out of there, no.

17     Q.   In 2009, were you aware of any employees from

18 Goldstrike who were working in Salt Lake City?

19     A.   No.

20     Q.   Was it your understanding in 2009 that all of

21 the employees of Goldstrike were working in Nevada?

22     A.   Yes.

23     Q.   Were there -- was it your understanding in 2009

24 that there were any Barrick Gold North America employees

25 working in Nevada?
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1     A.   To my recollection, no.

2     Q.   Do you -- and I'm entitled to estimates.  You

3 don't have to give me an exact number.

4     A.   No problem.

5     Q.   But if you don't know, you're not required to

6 guess, okay?

7              But this next question is probably gonna

8 re- -- elicit an estimate.  How many employees did

9 Goldstrike have in 2009?

10     A.   I'm estimating 1,600.

11              THE REPORTER:  -- "1,600"?

12              THE WITNESS:  Yeah.

13              MR. BRUST:  Okay.

14     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  And how many did it have in

15 2004 when you left Goldstrike?

16     A.   About the same.  I don't think there was too

17 much difference.

18     Q.   In 2009, did you -- were you required to go

19 visit any of the mines in Nevada?

20     A.   Absolutely.

21     Q.   Okay.  And how often did you visit Goldstrike in

22 2009?

23     A.   I would say at least once a quarter.  So at

24 least four times.

25     Q.   Okay.  And what was the purpose of those visits?
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1     A.   We provided technical support to the mine, so we

2 would bring a subject matter expert in to support the

3 operation and to look at various initiatives to improve

4 the operation.

5     Q.   And did you -- were -- were you in communication

6 in 2009 with personnel from Goldstrike?

7     A.   Absolutely.

8     Q.   Who would you mostly be in communication with?

9     A.   The general manager and the technical leads in

10 the mining and processing areas.

11     Q.   Do you remember who the general manager was in

12 2009?

13     A.   I believe it was John Mansanti.

14     Q.   And did you communicate with Mr. Mansanti --

15 well, let me ask you this.  How did you communicate with

16 Mr. Mansanti?

17     A.   The normal ways would either be by phone --

18     Q.   Uh-huh.

19     A.   -- or email.

20     Q.   And did you save any of those emails that you

21 had with Mr. Mansanti?

22     A.   I don't think so.

23     Q.   Okay.  And then what about who were the tech

24 leads that you communicated with?

25     A.   You know, I -- I don't recall.  I think Steve

PA00551
134134



17

1 Yopps was in the process area, but I -- I can't recall

2 who was in the -- in the mine.

3     Q.   Approximately how many times a month would you

4 communicate with Mr. Mansanti in 2009?

5     A.   I'd say four times a month.

6     Q.   Okay.  And then approximately how many times a

7 month would you communicate with Mr. Yopps in 2009?

8     A.   Similar.

9     Q.   Did you ever have communications with Barrick

10 Gold in Toronto in 2009?

11     A.   I do not believe so.

12     Q.   Let me see here.  Where was Goldstrike's leach

13 pad in 2009?

14     A.   Well, the leach pad was closed.

15              Are you talking about the heap leach pad?

16     Q.   Yes.

17     A.   The heap leach pad was just adjacent to the

18 autoclave facility.

19     Q.   And what different Barrick entities were using

20 that leach pad in 2009?

21     A.   I have no idea.

22     Q.   Who was in charge of that in 2009?

23     A.   In charge of what?

24     Q.   The leach -- the leach pad -- the heap leach

25 pad.
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1              MR. BRUST:  Here's Exhibit Number 7 which --

2 I'm sorry.  I need it back to staple it.

3              Okay.  We'll leave it like that.

4              Here you go.  So Exhibit Number 7 is an EEO

5 filing.

6     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  And my question here is do you

7 know who Steve Larson was?

8              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Objection.  Mr. Bolland has

9 not been designated to testify on EEO filings.

10              But you can go ahead and answer that

11 question, if you want.

12              MR. BRUST:  I thought that he was.

13              MR. PETROGEORGE:  That's also Mr. Haddock.

14              THE WITNESS:  I do not know who Steve Larson

15 is.

16              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Requests relating to EEOC

17 stuff is Request Number 7.

18              And the only designated witness is Rich

19 Haddock.

20              MR. BRUST:  Do you want me to ask Haddock?

21              Okay.

22                  (Whereupon Exhibit 8 was marked

23              for identification.)

24              MR. BRUST:  Here's Exhibit Number 8.

25     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  We spoke a little bit earlier

PA00553
136136



52

1 about the fact that Barrick Gold Corporation would

2 sometimes issue policies.  Is this the type of policy

3 that Barrick Gold Corporation would issue globally for

4 all of the companies, Exhibit Number 8?

5     A.   Yes.

6              THE REPORTER:  Counsel, wait.  There's a

7 sticker under there.

8              MR. BRUST:  Oh, thanks.

9                  (Whereupon Exhibit 9 was marked

10              for identification.)

11     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  And Exhibit Number 9, is

12 that -- here, Counsel -- is Exhibit Number 9 another

13 policy that would -- that was issued from Barrick Gold

14 Corporation for all of the Barrick family companies in

15 2009?

16     A.   It appears to be, yes.

17                  (Whereupon Exhibit 10 was marked

18              for identification.)

19     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  And Exhibit Number 10, same

20 question, is that another policy issued by Barrick Gold

21 Corp. that would have applied to all of the Barrick

22 families -- companies?

23     A.   It appears so, yes.

24              I haven't seen these before, though.

25     Q.   And the date where it says, "Issued:  August 3,
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1 2009," that would indicate that that came out in 2009,

2 correct?

3              (Unintelligible.)

4              THE REPORTER:  I didn't hear you, sir.

5     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  Up top where it says,

6 "Issued:".  In 2009?

7     A.   Is that -- is this a -- an intelligence quest,

8 or what?

9     Q.   Every once in a while someone will say, "No, it

10 wasn't 2009.  That date's wrong.  I remember it came out

11 in 2008."

12     A.   Well, it says "2009"; I guess that's when it

13 came out.

14              MR. BRUST:  All right.

15                  (Whereupon Exhibit 11 was marked

16              for identification.)

17     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  Exhibit 11 looks like an

18 organizational structure.

19              At the top of it, it says "Barrick Gold..."

20 Corp.

21              And my question is do you know who Bill Upton

22 is?

23     A.   Yes.

24     Q.   Was Mr. Upton in Toronto?

25     A.   We -- no.  He was in Salt Lake City, to my
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1 knowledge.

2     Q.   Okay.  Were any of the people on this document

3 in Toronto in 2009, to your knowledge?

4     A.   To my knowledge, no.

5     Q.   Were all of them in Salt Lake, to your

6 knowledge, in 2009?

7     A.   I don't know -- it looks like we -- yes, they --

8 they were in Salt Lake City.

9     Q.   Do you know if any of them worked for Barrick

10 Gold Corp.?

11     A.   I believe that the -- they reported up to

12 Barrick Gold Corp., yes.

13              MR. BRUST:  Okay.  All right.  All right.

14              Before I mark these, these are the paycheck

15 stubs.

16              MR. PETROGEORGE:  (Nods head.)

17              MR. BRUST:  Is he going to know about this or

18 is there somebody better to talk to about this?

19              And basically all I want to ask is some

20 questions about some of the designations on here,

21 Counsel.

22              For example, "GS Administration," I'm

23 assuming that's Goldstrike Administration; "SLC

24 President," what that means; and if there's an indication

25 on here from whom -- from which company the checks are

PA00556
139139



55

1 being paid.

2              MR. PETROGEORGE:  So I don't know that he's

3 been specifically designated on that.

4              I'll let you ask him and if he knows he can

5 answer it.

6              I just don't know what he's gonna know on

7 that issue.

8              MR. BRUST:  Is there somebody who would be

9 better designated?

10              Because I don't want to mark it and then have

11 to make new copies and all of that.

12              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Well --

13              MR. BRUST:  That's what I'm trying to avoid.

14              MR. PETROGEORGE:  -- Blake Measom was the

15 CFO, so --

16              MR. BRUST:  Yeah.

17              MR. PETROGEORGE:  -- he might have better

18 knowledge.

19              MR. BRUST:  I -- I'll ask you --

20              (Simultaneous colloquy.)

21              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Not knowing exactly what

22 you're gonna ask as far as --

23              MR. BRUST:  I'm gonna give it to him before I

24 mark it.

25              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Okay.
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1              MR. BRUST:  Okay?

2              MR. PETROGEORGE:  That's fine.

3     Q.  (BY MR. BRUST:)  So --

4     A.   I'm pretty sure --

5     Q.   -- go ahead and take a look at that.

6              And so, for example, on the first page which

7 I handed you which is BAR-J- -- sorry.

8              MR. PETROGEORGE:  No.  You're okay.

9              MR. BRUST:  You want it?

10              -J0043890, this looks like a paycheck stub to

11 me.

12     Q.   (BY MR. BRUST:)  Is that what it is, to your

13 knowledge?

14     A.   Yes.

15     Q.   And did you get these biweekly when you were

16 working for Barrick?

17     A.   I believe I did.

18     Q.   Okay.

19     A.   But my CFO took care of 'em.

20     Q.   All right.  So do you know anything about these,

21 about the language and what it means or the codes and

22 what they mean on these?

23     A.   Which codes?

24     Q.   So if you look right here, it says

25 "GS Administration."  What does that refer to?
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1     A.   That would infer that that is in the Goldstrike

2 Administration Department, to my knowledge.

3     Q.   And "Advice Number" up in the upper left-hand

4 corner, do you know what that refers to?

5     A.   No idea.

6     Q.   Do you -- can you tell by looking at this

7 document which company paid this paycheck?

8     A.   It's not my area.  I -- I really wouldn't --

9 wouldn't know.

10              MR. BRUST:  Okay.  All right.

11              I'll save these.

12              MR. PETROGEORGE:  I think Blake might be able

13 to answer those better.

14              MR. BRUST:  All right.

15              THE WITNESS:  He's the guy.

16              MR. BRUST:  Thank you.

17              Let me just take a few minutes --

18              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Do you want to --

19              MR. BRUST:  -- and --

20              MR. PETROGEORGE:  -- take a break?

21              MR. BRUST:  -- confer.

22              And we'll take a break.

23              MR. PETROGEORGE:  Okay.  You got it

24              (Recess from 10:09 a.m. until 10:26 a.m.)

25              MR. PETROGEORGE:  We ready?
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1              MR. BRUST:  Yes.

2              MR. PETROGEORGE:  So you are done?

3              MR. BRUST:  I am.

4              MR. PETROGEORGE:  All right.

5                        EXAMINATION

6 BY MR. PETROGEORGE:

7     Q.   Mr. Bolland, I think you testified that the

8 directors and managers located in Salt Lake City were

9 employed by Barrick Gold of North America; is that

10 correct?

11     A.   Sorry.  Say that again, Mike.

12     Q.   Were the directors and managers located in

13 Salt Lake City -- I think you said they were all employed

14 by Barrick Gold of North America --

15     A.   Yes --

16     Q.   -- right?

17     A.   -- yes, absolutely.

18     Q.   But as a director, you still had oversight and

19 responsibility over the Barrick Goldstrike Mines entity,

20 correct?

21     A.   Yes, we did.

22     Q.   And if you were working on something that

23 involves -- involved the Goldstrike Mine in Nevada, you

24 were working on that for and on behalf of Goldstrike --

25 Barrick Gold Mines, Inc., right?
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1     A.   Absolutely, yes.

2     Q.   In fact, there were employees of BGNA that had

3 officer titles but were located -- officer titles for

4 BGMI and were located in Salt Lake, correct?

5     A.   Yes.  I think Blake, Greg, and Mike Feehan, Rich

6 Haddock.

7     Q.   Where did you consider the executive loca- --

8 the executive-level functions of Barrick Goldstrike

9 Mines, Inc. to be located in 2009?

10     A.   In Salt Lake City, for sure.

11     Q.   And that's even though the BGMI payroll

12 employees were located in Nevada?

13     A.   Yes.

14     Q.   And even though the technical employer of the

15 Salt Lake executives was Barrick Gold North America?

16     A.   Yes.

17     Q.   How frequently would Barrick Gold Mines --

18 Barrick Goldstrike Mines' employees in Nevada interact

19 with the executive-level employees based in

20 Salt Lake City?

21     A.   Almost daily.

22     Q.   I want to talk a little bit more about the mine

23 plan that was discussed.  Who had ultimate oversight and

24 responsibility for that mine plan?

25     A.   Ultimate responsibility was with the general
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1 manager.  He would -- the mine plan would generate a

2 budget that would be presented to Salt Lake City.  If the

3 budget needed improvements, then Salt Lake City would

4 advise the general manager to go back and -- and look at

5 what opportunities there were with the mine plan.

6     Q.   Would the GM of Goldstrike ever implement a mine

7 plan over the objection of the executives located in

8 Salt Lake?

9     A.   No.

10     Q.   I want to talk to you a little bit in comparing

11 the relationship that existed between Toronto and Barrick

12 Gold of North America as compared to the relationship

13 between Barrick Gold of North America and Barrick

14 Goldstrike Mines.

15     A.   Sure.

16     Q.   Did Toronto have as much oversight and control

17 over Barrick Gold North America as Barrick Gold North

18 America had over Barrick Goldstrike Mines?

19     A.   No, definitely not.

20     Q.   Okay.  If someone -- and we can take a quick

21 look at Exhibit 4 just to bring this question a little

22 bit.

23              This was the email relating to the "Betze Pit

24 Expansion Project..." --

25     A.   Yeah.
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1     Q.   -- and permitting issues related to that.

2              If someone employed by Barrick Gold of North

3 America -- I'll let you get there -- is attending a

4 meeting on something that is involving Goldstrike

5 permitting, would they be there as a representative of

6 Goldstrike Mines?

7     A.   Absolutely.

8     Q.   And did the Barrick Gold of North America

9 employees have authority to work for and on behalf of

10 Barrick Goldstrike Mines when dealing with Barrick

11 Goldstrike Mines' business?

12     A.   Yes.

13     Q.   Did you, as a Barrick Goldstrike of North

14 America employee, have authority to work for and on

15 behalf of Goldstrike -- Barrick Goldstrike Mines when

16 dealing with technical services that impacted the

17 Goldstrike Mine?

18     A.   Absolutely, yes.

19              MR. PETROGEORGE:  No further questions.

20                        EXAMINATION

21 BY MR. BRUST:

22     Q.   How many different companies did you have that

23 type of authority to act on behalf of?

24     A.   All of the mines that reported up through

25 Barrick Gold of North America.  So the nine mines that --

PA00563
146146



66

1                UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

2                     DISTRICT OF NEVADA

3 BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,      )
                                   )

4              Plaintiff,            )
                                   )

5      v.                            ) Case No.
                                   ) 03:09-CV-612-MMD-WGC

6 BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,    )
                                   )

7              Defendant,            )
                                   )

8 ___________________________________)

9

10                   REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

11              I, Deby Couvillon Green, Certified Shorthand

12 Reporter for the State of Texas CSR No. 8929 and for the

13 State of California CSR No. 2791, and for the State of

14 Utah CSR No. 10611481-7801, Registered Professional

15 Reporter and Registered Merit Reporter, do hereby

16 certify:

17              That the foregoing proceedings were taken

18 before me at the time and place therein set forth, at

19 which time the witness was put under oath by me;

20              That the testimony of the witness, the

21 questions propounded, and all objections and statements

22 made at the time of the examination were recorded

23 stenographically by me and were thereafter transcribed;

24              That a review of the transcript by the

25 deponent was requested;
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1              That the foregoing is a true and correct

2 transcript of my shorthand notes so taken.

3              I further certify I am not a relative or

4 employee of any attorney of the parties, nor financially

5 interested in the action.

6              I declare under penalty of perjury under the

7 laws of Texas that the foregoing is true and correct.

8              Dated this 28th day of March, 2018.

9

10          ____________________________________________

11          DEBY COUVILLON GREEN, Texas CSR No. 8929
         Expiration Date:  12-31-2019

12          California CSR No. 2791
         Expiration Date:  8-31-2018

13          Utah CSR No. 10611481-7801
         Expiration Date:  5-31-2020
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         (818) 551-7300

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25 FILE NO.:  AC02625

PA00565
148148



EXHIBIT K 

PA00566

149149



 

  1 

 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

P
IS

A
N

E
L

L
I 
B

IC
E

 
40

0
SO

U
T

H
 7

T
H

ST
R

E
E

T
,S

U
IT

E
 3

00
L

A
S

V
E

G
A

S
,N

E
V

A
D

A
 8

91
01

DECLARATION OF DANA STRINGER

I, Dana Stringer, hereby declare as follows: 

1. I am Vice-President, Corporate Secretary and Associate General Counsel of Barrick 

Gold Corporation ("Barrick Gold") and have knowledge of the facts of this affidavit and will 

competently testify to same if called upon to do so. 

2. In November 2018, Barrick Gold continued as a corporation organized under the 

laws of the Province of British Columbia, Canada. Previously, Barrick Gold was a corporation 

organized under the laws of the Province of Ontario, Canada. 

3. Barrick Gold's headquarters is located at Brookfield Place, TD Canada Trust Tower, 

161 Bay Street, Suite 3700, Toronto, Ontario, M5J 2S1. Barrick Gold's registered office is 925 

West Georgia Street, Suite 1600, Vancouver, British Columbia, V6C 3L2.

4. In December 2018, Barrick Gold's executive officers were John Thornton, the 

Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors, who resided in Florida; Kevin Thomson, Senior 

Executive Vice President, Strategic Matters who resided in Toronto, Canada; Catherine Raw, 

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, who resided in Toronto, Canada; Darian 

Rich, Executive Vice President, Talent Management, who resided in Toronto, Canada; Robert 

Krcmarov, Executive Vice President, Exploration and Growth, who resided in Toronto, Canada;

Mark Hill, Chief Investment Officer, who resided in Toronto, Canada, Kathy Sipos, Chief of Staff, 

who resided in Toronto, Canada; and Greg Walker, Senior Vice President, Operational and 

Technical Excellence, who resided in Toronto, Canada.

5. In December 2018, none of Barrick Gold's executive officers resided in Nevada. 

6. In December 2018, Barrick Gold had thirteen members on its Board of Directors. 

Three of Barrick Gold's directors lived in Toronto, Canada; two lived in Nevada; five lived in other 

areas of the United States (Florida, New York, California, Colorado, and Pennsylvania), and three 

resided outside of the United States and Canada (Argentina, Chile and the Dominican Republic). 

7. In 2018, the Board of Directors held all of its meetings in Toronto, Canada. 

8. Barrick Gold's corporate records are maintained in Toronto, Canada. 
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9. Barrick Gold exists as a parent company, managing its investments and interests in 

various wholly and partially owned subsidiary companies.

10. Although most of Barrick Gold's subsidiary companies are involved in the gold 

mining industry, Barrick Gold holds a diverse portfolio of interests and investments.

11. Barrick Gold's subsidiary companies operate in numerous countries throughout the 

world and operate and exist under the laws of those jurisdictions.

12. Barrick Gold is not registered to do business as a foreign corporation in Nevada 

under NRS 80.060 because it does not own any property in Nevada and does not conduct any 

business in Nevada.

13. Barrick Gold has never registered to do business as a foreign corporation in Nevada, 

and therefore has never appointed a registered agent under Nevada law, because it has never owned 

any property in Nevada and has never conducted business in the state.

14. Prior to December 2018, Barrick Gold had never directly participated in a joint 

venture or partnership owning properties in Nevada.

15. Barrick Gold has never designed, manufactured, advertised, delivered, or sold any

goods, services, or products in Nevada. 

16. Barrick Gold does not have any employees in Nevada.

17. Barrick Gold does not have an office or telephone listing in Nevada.

18. Barrick Gold does not have any bank accounts in Nevada. 

19. Barrick Gold does not pay any taxes in Nevada or to any Nevada taxing authority. 

20. Barrick Gold does not have any license or distribution agreements involving 

Nevada. 

21. As of December 2018, Barrick Gold had no presence in Nevada, except through a 

lengthy chain of separately incorporated U.S. subsidiaries. Barrick Gold was the ultimate parent 

company of several companies that operate in Nevada. For example, in December 2018 the 

Goldstrike mine, which is located near Elko, Nevada, was owned by Defendant Barrick Goldstrike 

Mines, Inc. ("Goldstrike"), a Colorado corporation. Goldstrike is a subsidiary of Defendant Barrick 

Gold Exploration, Inc. ("Exploration"), a Delaware corporation, which is, in turn, a subsidiary of 
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Defendant ABX Financeco, Inc. ("ABX"), a Delaware corporation, which is a subsidiary of Barrick 

Gold.

22. Barrick Gold does not itself engage in mining or processing activities, operate

mining or processing facilities within Nevada or the United States. Barrick Gold does not itself own 

any equipment or facilities to conduct mining or processing activities in Nevada or the United 

States. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the foregoing 

is true and correct.

DATED this 11th day of October 2019.

______________________________
DANA STRINGER

PA00569

152152



EXHIBIT L 

PA00570

153153



PA00571

154154



PA00572

155155



1

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Admitted Pro Hac Vic

Attorneys for Defendant Barrick Nevada Holding LLC 

Electronically Filed
8/6/2020 5:51 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURTCLERK KKKKKKK OF THE COUUURTRTRTTRTRTTTT

PA00573



2

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc. v. 
Newmont USA Limited, et al.

Bullion Monarch Mining, Inc. v. 
Newmont USA Limited, et al., 

/s/ Dustun H. Holmes

Admitted Pro Hac Vice

      Attorneys for Barrick Nevada Holding LLC 

PA00574



3

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

/s/ Kimberly Peets

PA00575



EXHIBIT A 

001

PA00576



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/08   Page 1 of 8

002

PA00577



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/08   Page 2 of 8

003

PA00578



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/08   Page 3 of 8

004

PA00579



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/08   Page 4 of 8

005

PA00580



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/08   Page 5 of 8

006

PA00581



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/08   Page 6 of 8

007

PA00582



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/08   Page 7 of 8

008

PA00583



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1   Filed 04/28/08   Page 8 of 8

009

PA00584



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1-2   Filed 04/28/08   Page 1 of 1

010

PA00585



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1-3   Filed 04/28/08   Page 1 of 2

011

PA00586



Case 3:08-cv-00227-VPC   Document 1-3   Filed 04/28/08   Page 2 of 2

012

PA00587



EXHIBIT B 

013

PA00588



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 1 of 40

014

PA00589



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 2 of 40

015

PA00590



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 3 of 40

016

PA00591



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 4 of 40

017

PA00592



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 5 of 40

018

PA00593



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 6 of 40

019

PA00594



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 7 of 40

020

PA00595



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 8 of 40

021

PA00596



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 9 of 40

022

PA00597



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 10 of 40

023

PA00598



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 11 of 40

024

PA00599



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 12 of 40

025

PA00600



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 13 of 40

026

PA00601



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 14 of 40

027

PA00602



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 15 of 40

028

PA00603



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 16 of 40

029

PA00604



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 17 of 40

030

PA00605



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 18 of 40

031

PA00606



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 19 of 40

032

PA00607



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 20 of 40

033

PA00608



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 21 of 40

034

PA00609



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 22 of 40

035

PA00610



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 23 of 40

036

PA00611



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 24 of 40

037

PA00612



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 25 of 40

038

PA00613



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 26 of 40

039

PA00614



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 27 of 40

040

PA00615



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 28 of 40

041

PA00616



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 29 of 40

042

PA00617



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 30 of 40

043

PA00618



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 31 of 40

044

PA00619



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 32 of 40

045

PA00620



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 33 of 40

046

PA00621



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 34 of 40

047

PA00622



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 35 of 40

048

PA00623



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 36 of 40

049

PA00624



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 37 of 40

050

PA00625



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 38 of 40

051

PA00626



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 39 of 40

052

PA00627



Case 3:08-cv-00227-ECR-VPC     Document 48      Filed 06/22/2009     Page 40 of 40

053

PA00628



EXHIBIT C 

054

PA00629



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA

RENO, NEVADA

BULLION MONARCH MINING, INC.,

Plaintiff, 03:08-CV-227-ECR-VPC
03:09-CV-612-ECR-VPC

vs. MINUTES OF COURT 

NEWMONT USA LIMITED, and Date:  October 19, 2009
BARRICK GOLDSTRIKE MINES, INC.,

Defendants.
       /

PRESENT:  Edward C. Reed, Jr., Senior U.S. District Judge

Courtroom Deputy: Colleen Larsen; Court Reporter: Kathy French

Counsel for Plaintiff: Clay Brust; Tom Belaustegui

Counsel for Defendant: Matthew Hippler; Frank Wikstrom; Michael Petrogeorge

MINUTES OF TELEPHONE STATUS CONFERENCE:

At 10:10 A. M. Conference commences.

Court and counsel confer to determine further proceedings in respect to defendant
Barrick Goldstrike Mines pursuant to the order of this Court (#118), granting
severance of claims.

The action of plaintiff against defendant Barrick having been severed upon stipulation
of the parties, IT IS ORDERED that the action against defendant Barrick will be re-
numbered with a number to be assigned by the Clerk.  A copy of the amended
complaint in this case will be placed in the new file.  The new case number will be
03:09-CV-612-ECR-VPC.

All discovery for the case 03:08-CV-227, shall be filed and may be used in the sub-
case.  Defendant in the sub-case, Barrick, may conduct appropriate additional
discovery in the sub-case, as may be appropriate.
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03:08-CV-227-ECR October 19, 2009 Page Two

IT IIS FURTHER ORDERED that the sub-case, 03:09-CV-612-ECR-VPC, is referred to the
Magistrate Judge for purposes of issuing a scheduling order.  The parties shall submit
to the Magistrate Judge a proposed scheduling order for the sub-case.

Discovery in the main case may not be used in the sub-case unless Barrick has a
meaningful opportunity to conduct additional discovery with respect to any such
witness.

The parties anticipate filing a confidentiality agreement for approval by the
Magistrate Judge in respect to the plaintiff and defendant Barrick.  

A copy of the answer filed in the main case 03:08-CV-227-ECR-VPC, by defendant
Barrick, will be filed by the Clerk in the sub-case, 03:09-CV-612-ECR-VPC.

The caption for the sub-case, 03:09-CV-612-ECR-VPC, will be Buillion Monarch Mining,
Inc. vs. Barrick Goldstrike Mines, Inc.

The docket , up to this point used in the main case 03:08-CV-227-ECR-VPC, will be
used and adopted for the sub-case, 03:09-CV-612-ECR-VPC.

The parties advise the Court that a prompt ruling on dispositive motions filed in the
main case 03:08-CV-227, will assist in narrowing discovery in the sub-case, 03:09-CV-
612.

At 10:40 A. M. Conference concludes.

LANCE S. WILSON, CLERK

By        /s/                 
      Deputy
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